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JANUARY 1ST


1934: On this day, an article about the building of wooden barques and schooners was printed in the Scarborough Evening News. Written by Douglas J. Boyle, who drew upon information from old insurance papers, it highlighted the role played in the world’s carrying trade, by brigs of around 250 tons and barques of about 350 tons. Many of these vessels were constructed on the banks of the River Esk at Whitby or along Scarborough’s Sandside, where buildings extended from the Marine Drive Toll House to the Olympia.


The introduction of iron for shipbuilding effectively ended Scarborough’s role in the industry, with the construction of fishing yawls, by firms such as Tindall’s, marking the final stages. (Scarborough Evening News)
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1973: Jimi Mistry was born in Scarborough, and after schooling at Cheadle Hulme and Cardiff he trained at the Birmingham School of Speech and Drama. His first major television appearance was as Dr Fred Fonseca in BBC Television’s EastEnders and, in addition to a series of starring roles in films such as Blood Diamond, Exam and It’s A Wonderful Afterlife, he has also written and produced a music documentary about Ibiza, with the title And the Beat Goes On. Jimi Mistry competed in the BBC series Strictly Come Dancing in 2010, where he was partnered with Flavia Cacace until their elimination in week seven. (en.wikipedia.org)


JANUARY 2ND


1979: Jonathan Greening, an experienced footballer in the higher levels of English football, was born in Scarborough. His early promise as a creative midfielder saw him begin his career with York City. He made his debut as substitute in a 1–1 draw against Bournemouth on March 22nd 1997 and almost exactly one year later he signed for Manchester United, where first team opportunities were limited. Greening won England under-21 honours during his time at Old Trafford and as substitute he won a UEFA Champions League medal in 1999. On August 8th 2001 a move to Middlesbrough saw him join up with former assistant manager of United, Steve McClaren. He was voted ‘Player of the Year 2002/3’ and was included in the full England squad (though he did not play). As appearances for Middlesbrough became fewer, he signed for West Bromwich Albion at the end of the 2003/4 season. During his time at the Hawthorns, Greening was club captain for the 2007/08 season and was named in the PFA ‘Championship Team of the Year’, before he moved to Fulham in August 2009. This was followed by a transfer to Nottingham Forest in July 2011, where he again joined up with Steve McClaren. (en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Jonathan_Greening)


JANUARY 3RD


1949: Alfred Rutherford was appointed secretary of Scarborough Cricket Club. A total of seventy-nine applicants were considered for the post, but his experience as a clerk with the County Council, coupled with time as an RAF physical training instructor and then secretary of Thirsk Athletic Club, ensured Rutherford’s success.


The post-war era brought record attendances at a range of sporting events, and with support from an enthusiastic, farsighted committee, Alfred Rutherford’s organising ability and commitment ensured a period of growth and prosperity for Scarborough Cricket Club. These improved fortunes were highlighted by publications such as the Yorkshire Illustrated, with comments such as:




The Festival seemed to wake up with a bang! Amenities improved for players and spectators alike. The Festival, instead of swimming along on an even keel suddenly got a jerk from outside, from Alfred! There was a clamour for reserved seats and last year’s takings for these (£1,554) were more than double what they were in 1949 (£749).





Structural changes resulted in larger changing rooms, a new bar, dining room and spectator seating, as well as construction of the West Stand which could accommodate 1,700 spectators.


During 1961, Alfred Rutherford left Scarborough to become general manager of Leeds Cricket, Football & Athletic Co. Ltd at Headingley. (Ian Hall & John Found, Cricket at Scarborough: A Social History of the Club and Its Festival, Breedon Books Publishing Co. Ltd, 1992)


JANUARY 4TH


1891: Joseph Hunter, one of Scarborough’s foremost cricketers, died at the young age of thirty-five after bouts of serious illness. Born on August 3rd 1855, he played for the town in the 1870s and often opened the batting, before making his mark as a wicketkeeper.


In 1878 he was selected by Yorkshire County Cricket Team and featured in a total of ten matches during that season. It was three years before Joseph Hunter gained a regular place in the county team and he continued as first-choice wicketkeeper for a further seven years. His prowess behind the stumps led to him touring Australia in 1884-5, the only Scarborough-born cricketer to play for England, and he averaged over 18 with the bat, made 3 stumpings and took 8 catches.


For almost a hundred years, Hunter held the record number of dismissals in a county match with 9 catches during a match against Gloucestershire in 1887. His record of six dismissals in a single innings was only bettered by David Bairstow (with 7 catches in an innings and 11 in the match) in 1982. Returning to Scarborough’s team after his county days, Joseph Hunter totalled almost 1,200 runs with a top score of 60 not out. (Ian Hall & John Found, Cricket at Scarborough: A Social History of the Club and Its Festival, Breedon Books Publishing Co. Ltd, 1992)


JANUARY 5TH


1917: William Phillips, one of a considerable number of artists based in Scarborough at the end of the nineteenth century, died on this day at the age of eighty-six. Born in Manchester, he was living in Scarborough during 1881 when he listed himself as an ‘artist’ in the census of that year. He is also named as an artist in the 1893 Scarborough directory, with his home address given as 102 Long Westgate. William Phillips was buried in Scarborough cemetery. (Anne and Paul Bayliss, Scarborough Artists of the Nineteenth Century: A Biographical Dictionary, Anne Bayliss, 1997)


[image: image]


2011: On this day, Helene Palmer, actress and entertainer, died at Scarborough Hospital following a short period of illness. She was born at Bolton-on-Dearne, South Yorkshire on March 5th 1928. During her career as an entertainer in the 1960s and ’70s, Helene befriended celebrities such as Pat Phoenix, Lynne Perrie, Freddie Starr and Les Dawson. In 1978 she joined the cast of ITV’s Coronation Street and made regular appearances as machinist Ida Clough. After being written out of the script in 1988, she reappeared during 1995 and continued in Coronation Street for another three years. Combining work in the licensed trade with her media work, Helene Palmer and her husband Alex managed premises in Sewerby and Bridlington during the 1970s and ’80s. (en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Helene_Palmer)


JANUARY 6TH


1865: The Wheelhouse Free Almshouses were founded by deed on this day, by George Wheelhouse and Mrs Elizabeth Buckle. New trustees were also appointed by order of Charity Commissioners on February 12th 1907. According to Baines’ Yorkshire Past and Present, the almshouses are located on Dean Road and are built in the form of a square, with the hall and tower at one end. Completed at an overall cost of £40,000, each dwelling consists of a good porch, living room, bedroom and scullery besides a larder, coal closet etc. Baines’ survey, which covered the years up to 1871, concluded that charitable institutions in Scarborough were numerous and well-supported. These included the Amicable Society, founded by R. North Esq. in 1729, established to clothe and educate the children of poor families in the town, the nearby Seamen’s Hospital, which was under the superintendence of the Trinity House in Deptford, and a sea-bathing infirmary that had been opened in 1811, through the unstinting efforts of Archdeacon Wrangham, in order to supply free medical services to the poor. A cottage hospital, founded by a Mrs Wright, could also accommodate twenty-four patients. (www.genuki.org.uk)


JANUARY 7TH


1905: During the hours of darkness, heavy seas and an extremely high tide caused Scarborough’s North Pier to collapse. Driven coastward in the teeth of a north-west gale, huge waves had battered the North Bay, and backwash from the Royal Albert Drive added to the onslaught that left a trail of twisted metal and floating debris.


The only part of the structure left standing was the pier head pavilion at the seaward end, far below the low-water mark. The pier’s demise appealed to local photography companies, such as Thomas Taylor and E.T.W. Dennis, who rapidly produced photographs of the destruction. Such was the popularity of the images, that the initial supply sold out and extra photographs were printed. The owner of the pier at the time was Scarborough’s mayor, William Morgan, who had purchased it for £3,500 in 1904, but because of previous storm damage, it could not be insured and the destroyed ironwork was sold for scrap.


A local newspaper stated that, ‘The sea was left to wash gleefully over the foundations of what once had to meet the full force of the oncoming waves and was, to all intents and purposes, destroyed for daring to offer resistance.’ (Martin Easdown, Piers of Disaster: Sad Story of the Seaside Pleasure Piers of the Yorkshire Coast, Hutton Press Ltd, 1996)


JANUARY 8TH


1988: On this day, a telephone kiosk on the Scarborough Station Concourse was listed by English Heritage as being of historic interest. The distinctive square, red-painted, cast-iron structure was one of many made by various contractors, taken from an original design by Sir Giles Gilbert Scott in 1935. Named type K6, it was designed to commemorate the Silver Jubilee of King George V and became the first telephone kiosk to be widely used outside London, with many thousands subsequently positioned in towns and cities throughout the country.


Initially, the K6 was not universally popular, with the red colour providing the main area of debate, so the Post Office allowed a more muted colour of grey with red glazing bars for areas of natural and architectural importance. As demand for K6 kiosks increased, the initial number grew from 19,000 in 1935, to 44,000 in 1950 and 73,000 in 1980, as a result, in 1953, a purpose-built kiosk trailer was designed to allow easier transportation. (www.britishlistedbuildings.co.uk)
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2012: On this day, two local teams triumphed in an under-18s Indoor Bowls Tournament held at Eastfield House in Scarborough. A total of ten teams from Yorkshire and the north east took part and Scarborough A won the trophy competition, while Scarborough B were successful in the Plate contest. Eastfield House provides a range of day-care services and the Head of Care, Melanie Padgham, presented the trophies. (Scarborough Evening News)


JANUARY 9TH


1945: Four hundred evacuees from London and the Hull area were guests of the Mayor of Scarborough at the Olympia, where a Punch & Judy man provided entertainment and a variety of games were arranged.


Evacuees had begun to arrive in Scarborough during the morning of September 1st 1939, when a trainload accompanied by teachers and helpers disembarked from Hull at the Londesborough Road railway station. Preparations were thorough, and on arrival in Scarborough each child was given a paper carrier bag containing chocolates and potato crisps, along with a tin of bully beef, 1lb biscuits, qt. lb. chocolate or two chocolate crisps, and tins of both sweetened and unsweetened milk.


During the following week, thousands more refugees arrived in Scarborough from Hull, West Hartlepool and Middlesbrough, but by November 10th 1939, 3,696 evacuees had chosen to return home and by April 2nd 1940 a total of 6,000 had left. Another wave of refugee arrivals took place in the later days of July 1944 with a group of 1,250 children from areas of London, where they had suffered attacks from flying bombs and rockets. An additional group of 676 evacuees arrived on August 21st 1944, and it was the following summer before evacuees left the Scarborough area. (Richard James Percy, Scarborough’s War Years, 1939-45, Sutton Publishing Ltd, 1992)


JANUARY 10TH


1852: In the early part of this day, high winds from the northwest caused one of the highest tides for twenty years. Coping stones on the Spa walls were swept away and scattered some distance away, while thousands of tons of sand were scoured from the area between the pier and Mill Beck. Coastal fences were badly damaged, as were vessels in the harbour, and as winds strengthened further later in the day the roofs and chimneys of several houses were dashed to pieces. (Keith Snowden, Scarborough Through the Ages: The Story of the Queen of English Watering Places, Castleden Publications, 1995)
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1954: The first meeting of the Scarborough Railway Society was held in the garage of Ken Hoole, behind his shop on Newlands Park Drive. Present at this inaugural meeting were Ken Hoole, Brian Webb, Norman Skinner, Fred Rowntree, Ian Lewis, Bill Hardwick and David Bointon. After their third meeting, members of the society moved to the club room of the British Railways Rifle Range on West Parade Road adjacent to Gallows Close Goods Yard. Room hire within a coach cost 5s (25p) per week and during winter months senior members arranged to arrive early in order to light the old cast-iron stove in the centre of the coach. (Robin Lidster, Scarborough Railway Society 1954-2004: a Brief History to Mark the 50th Anniversary, Robin Lidster, 2004)


JANUARY 11TH


1979: This day saw the closure of the Cricketers’ Room at Scarborough’s Grand Hotel, which brought to an end a unique link with the famous annual Cricket Festival. From its official beginning in 1876, the festival grew rapidly in popularity to attract almost every great name in the sport and, through the years, most of the game’s amateur players stayed at the Grand Hotel, as well as many of the overseas professionals.


About ten years after the festival got underway, the hotel’s general manager decided that his cricketing guests should be allowed greater privacy and allocated a room for their exclusive use. Located beside the old dining room and near the foot of the main staircase, it became known as the Cricketers’ Room. It soon displayed photographs of an array of outstanding players, ranging from Dr W.G. Grace and Ranjit Singh, to N.W.D. Yardley and B. Bosanquet, originator of the googly. The Grand Hotel’s links with the Festival even extended to the cricket ground, where, during the late 1940s, cricketers took their tea on the field rather than in the pavilion. Food and drink (which, evidently, included whisky when requested) was served on silver trays by staff from the hotel, including the head waiter. (Bryan Perrett, Sense of Style: Being a Brief History of the Grand Hotel, Scarborough, Burscough, B. Perrett, 1991)


JANUARY 12TH


1895: Reverend Samuel Edward Fitch died on this day and is buried in Scarborough Cemetery. Born in Cambridge in 1812, he trained and qualified as a doctor, but never seems to have practised medicine, before taking up a career in the Anglican Church. After training at St Bees’ Theological College in the Lake District between 1844 and 1846, he was based in Norfolk and then Bedfordshire, where an interest in Celtic and Saxon remains led to him publishing his research in illustrated articles. Revd Fitch then spent time in the Lake District before moving to Scarborough in 1875, where some of his work, including Legends of Lakeland (1881) and weekly ‘Versified Charades’, was published in the Scarborough Gazette. (Anne and Paul Bayliss, Medical Profession in Scarborough 1700 to 1899: A Biographical Dictionary, A.M. Bayliss, 2005)
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1940: On the evening of this day, Scarborough-based trawlers came under attack from enemy aircraft for the first time. The Persian Empire with skipper Thomas Robson and the Riby, under Joe Winship’s command, were dive-bombed and machine-gunned, but damage was slight. Four bombs were released but fell wide of their target, however, the incident left a compass, dynamo and wireless on the Riby damaged. The Persian Empire fired its rockets and this seemed to deter the raiders. (www.mistoftime.co.uk)


JANUARY 13TH


1936: The Great Annual Sale of Westbrook Wholesale Cabinet Works Ltd at no. 6 Castle Road was advertised on this day, with the bold statement:




We have only one sale per year. This is a genuine sale. Anyone can afford to buy furniture at these prices. It is not an expense, it is an investment. A few examples are as follows: 250 4ft and 4ft 6in Full Panel Bedsteads, with Vono Fittings 17/6, Oak Drawleaf Dining Tables 37/6 Oak Dining Chairs 11/6 4ft Oak sideboards 37/6 50 only, 5 piece Lounge Suites in various coverings, from £4 Large Meat Safes 15/- 250 only, Feather Pillows, 2/- each to clear Many other items at correspondingly low prices … Westbrook Furniture is as good as the best and better than most. It is made on the premises by skilled craftsmen, and we cut the middleman’s profit clean out. That is how we can sell so much below ordinary dealers’ prices, at the same time giving superior quality and finish. If you are requiring good, sound furniture at lowest possible prices, your decision will definitely be Westbrook, the furnishing specialists.





(Scarborough Evening News)


JANUARY 14TH


1940: A highly realistic Air Raid Precautions (ARP) exercise took place in the Scarborough area today. A practice warning was given to all key posts, and wardens who were already on duty summoned other wardens to take part. A total of twenty-three incidents were dealt with during the operation, in places including Derwent Street, Morgan Street and Sidney Street, where gas was supposedly present. (Richard James Percy, Scarborough’s War Years, 1939–45, Sutton Publishing Ltd, 1992)
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2002: This day marked the launch of a fundraising campaign by the Scarborough Evening News which called on its readers to help. The newspaper was adopting the St Catherine’s Hospice campaign, which was aiming to complete a new £5.5 million building in the town. Over the next two years the sum of £2 million needed to be raised by members of the public so that the dream could become reality. The hospice had outgrown its thirteen-bed accommodation in Scalby Road, and in 2001 officers of St Catherine’s Hospice had acquired 4.5 acres of land in Throxenby Lane. The intention was to construct a twenty-bed hospice and headquarters unit, with more single rooms for patients, with better shower and bathing facilities, as well as a family room for relatives to stay overnight. (Scarborough Evening News)


JANUARY 15TH


1921: A report in the Drapers Record described the successful Christmas Tableau that was a feature of the Bazaar at Messrs Boyes’ Stores at Scarborough … Robinson Crusoe and Man Friday were shown on the island with the wreck visible in the distance, and the fact that all the characters were alive added greatly to its interest. Robinson Crusoe was sometimes seen at work in the cave and at other times strolling along the sea shore, and his companions in the form of a talking parrot and even a live dog and goat gave great delight to the children who came in the thousands to see the show. A live teddy bear walking about the store was the cause of great amusement, and no Christmas attraction would be complete without Father Christmas, and this popular gentleman was at home in his chimney corner where he was met with a great reception. It was reported that one little girl, when told to go to bed early on Christmas Eve as Father Christmas would be coming, replied, ‘Oh, don’t worry, he won’t have left Boyes’ store yet.’ (The tableau was either a walk-in series of settings or a ride such as ‘A trip to the Moon’.) (Boyes Stores: the Story of a Family; Boyes, 1881-1981, a Century of Good Value, Boyes, 1981)


JANUARY 16TH


1952: One of Britain’s finest singers, the contralto Kathleen Ferrier, gave a concert at Queen Street Central Hall on this day, and a review in the Scarborough Evening News reported: ‘The recital was a wonderful experience and one which must have given unalloyed pleasure to all who were privileged to hear it. From beginning to end Miss Ferrier succeeded in holding her audience enthralled.’ She was at the height of her popularity and the audience was completely unaware of her deteriorating medical condition as cancer spread to her bones and caused increasing pain. In the following year, during a concert at Covent Garden, her left thigh fractured and she sang through the pain barrier to complete what turned out to be her final public performance. Two days before she died, Sir John Barbirolli visited her in hospital, where she sang for him parts of Chausson’s Poème de l’amour et de la mer. He remarked that although her body had deteriorated, Kathleen Ferrier’s voice had lost none of its radiance. Sixty years later, the 1952 concert programme was recreated in Scarborough by mezzo-soprano Anna Stephany, winner of the Kathleen Ferrier award, with proceeds going to Macmillan Cancer Support and similar charities. (Scarborough Evening News)


JANUARY 17TH


1905: A meeting of the Scarborough Forty Club on this day held an impromptu discussion on the subject – ‘Is the present age an excessively competitive one? The evils of the drink traffic’


Early activities of the Forty Club were associated with the aims of the Scarborough Amicable Society, which was set up in March 1729 ‘with the intention of clothing and educating the children of the poor of Scarborough’, and meetings during the first decade of the twentieth century often included discussions on current social or political issues. (Alan Staniforth, Scarborough Forty Club & Discussion Group: A Brief History: the ‘40’ Club, founded in 1899, Alan Staniforth, 2005)
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1921: J.V. (Vic) Wilson was born and brought up at Scampston, near Malton, and joined Scarborough’s successful cricket team in 1938 as a hard-hitting batsman and fine close-in fielder. These qualities led to a place on the Marylebone Cricket Club touring party to Australia in 1954-55, where he featured as the twelfth man in all five Test matches.


As captain of Yorkshire from 1960-62 he led the county to success in the championship (in both 1960 and 1962) and exhibited a brand of strong discipline, which saw Fred Trueman be sent home for arriving late. In his 658 innings for Yorkshire he scored a total of 20,539 runs at an average of 31.21 per match. (Ian Hall & John Found, Cricket at Scarborough: A Social History of the Club and Its Festival, Breedon Books Publishing Co. Ltd, 1992)


JANUARY 18TH


1935: The North Riding Police Court at Scarborough was the setting for lively exchanges between the chairman and the defendant’s solicitor. William A. Bull, a resident of Hull, was charged with taking half a dozen bricks from the roadside at Lebberston on January 11th. The bricks, which were the property of the Corporation Electricity Department, were used in the laying of an electricity cable and had a value of 10d. George Frederick Fitzwater, senior assistant mains engineer, explained that the bricks were of a particular type and gave warning to a person digging that they were approaching a high tension cable carrying 11,000 volts. Police Constable Huggins explained how he had found the bricks in the front of the defendant’s car and how Bull had immediately expressed his regret for his actions. He had taken them to build up a fireplace and did not think that he was committing a criminal offence. ‘I have been a fool’ he continued, as he had jeopardised his employment, where he held a position of trust and confidence and handled large sums of money every day. If convicted he would lose the fidelity bond, which was a requirement of that job. (Scarborough Evening News)


JANUARY 19TH


1945: Scarborough lighthouse was brought back into use again at high tide from this date, as wartime restrictions were gradually relaxed. Almost exactly one month later, on February 20th, pleasure craft were allowed to operate to a maximum distance of 2.5 miles from the coastline during daylight hours. Within the town itself, traffic lights operated again from June 1st 1945 and during the same month a one-way traffic flow began on Aberdeen Walk. Further moves towards normality followed later in the year, when Scarborough Castle reopened for public visits on November 17th and the annual charity football match between fishermen and firemen, last held in 1938, was staged on Boxing Day 1945. The final weeks of the year also saw the withdrawal of troops from local billets and the YMCA canteen for forces personnel, located at the South Cliff Congregational Church, was closed for good during December. In spite of these elements of everyday life, there were chilling reminders of the previous war years, with the discovery of two live Mills bombs at Swift’s Hotel on Blenheim Terrace and five blast bombs in the garden of 132 North Marine Road. (Richard James Percy, Scarborough’s War Years, 1939–45, Sutton Publishing Ltd, 1992)


JANUARY 20TH


1922: John Harwood Hick, the son of a solicitor, was born in Scarborough on this day. After a period of study at the Bootham School in York he became an articled clerk in the family’s law firm. During 1941, Hick gave up his legal studies to read Philosophy at Edinburgh University and in the following year he served with a Friends’ Ambulance Unit in Egypt, Italy and Greece. Returning to his studies after the war he gained a First at Edinburgh in 1948 and completed a PhD at Oxford, before becoming a minister in the Presbyterian Church at Belford in Northumberland; however, a move into academic circles soon followed.


In 1956, Hick went to America as Assistant Professor of Philosophy at Princeton Theological Seminary, and during the next few years he gained an international reputation through his book Philosophy of Religion (1963) and because of a doctrinal disagreement with the hierarchy of the Presbyterian Church. During the mid-1960s, Hick spent time teaching in England and America, as well as writing another significant book, Evil and the God of Love (1966). His career as a writer, lecturer and academic continued beyond his retirement in 1992 and he died on February 9th 2012. (The Daily Telegraph)


JANUARY 21ST


1967: Andrew Hedley Hornby, prominent businessman of recent years, was born in Scarborough. The family soon moved to the Bristol area where his father was headteacher at Clifton College Preparatory School. Andy Hornby’s own education included a degree in English literature from St Peter’s College, Oxford, and an MBA from Harvard Business School. After leaving Harvard he joined Blue Circle Industries where he held a range of management posts and then moved on to Asda in 1996. Three years later, at the age of thirty-two, he was promoted to the Asda Management Board, before he joined Halifax as Chief Executive of Retail in November 1999. During 2001, after the merger with Bank of Scotland, he became Chief Executive of HBOS Retail and he was thrust into the forefront of media attention when a government-facilitated rescue by Lloyds TSB took place during autumn 2008. At that time he was also Chairman of the Remuneration Committee. On July 1st 2009 Andy Hornby became Group Chief Executive of Alliance Boots, and after resigning from this post in March 2011 he took over as Chief Executive of Coral. (en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Andy_Hornby)


JANUARY 22ND


1941: Sirens were sounded between 12.10 and 12.57 a.m. on this day, when enemy aircraft flew over Seamer. Five high explosive bombs were released at Rillington, and the German raider then machine-gunned several cottages in the village where a number of windows were broken. The invader also machine-gunned a goods train. Men on the train took cover, as well as a number of workmen who were labouring nearby. The railway line itself was wrecked, and damage was caused to the roofs and windows of eight houses. A nearby farmhouse also suffered damage. (www.mistoftime.co.uk)
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2012: Delighted passers-by on Scarborough seafront gathered in large numbers to watch a porpoise that had made its way from the open sea into the harbour. Crowds also spread along the slipway off Sandside as the animal swam up and down. One of the shore-side spectators reported that it had been in the harbour for quite a while and seemed perfectly happy, while a member of the Humber coastguard commented that the porpoise had not caused any disruption. Although it was a fairly unusual occurrence for one to come all the way into the harbour, he added that they can be spotted fairly regularly further out to the sea off Scarborough. (Scarborough Evening News)


JANUARY 23RD


1963: One of Scarborough’s coldest nights was recorded on this day, with temperatures reaching their lowest mark for eighteen years. Air temperature in the Town Hall gardens went down to 21 degrees Fahrenheit (11 degrees of frost), to equal the figure for December 29th 1961, and there were still 7 degrees of frost at 9.00 a.m. Scarborough’s previous coldest night was in January 1945, when the air temperature in the Town Hall gardens dropped to 15 degrees Farenheit (17 degrees of frost).This latest bout of intense cold brought problems for the North-East Electricity Board’s Scarborough office, which was inundated with calls from customers about loss of power during the evening. A spokesman stated that as far as was known, the fault was a result of icing on the grid lines near Hull. Power loss occurred about eight or nine times through the evening, with many television viewers worried when they saw the picture suddenly fading and then returning to normal. The Scarborough-Pickering road was reported to be clear and safe, but the Scarborough-Whitby road was still restricted to single-lane traffic in parts. Demand for gas was reported to be ‘absolutely fantastic’, and Scarborough plumbers were expecting a flood of calls to deal with burst pipes once the thaw set in. (Scarborough Evening News)


JANUARY 24TH


1903: Scarborough Forty Club stated on this day:




… that a Smoking Concert be held with the object being to aid the distressed … that the proceeds be devoted to providing free dinners for necessitous children, that the dinner tickets be handed over for distribution to the teachers of the various schools and that payment be made periodically to the various serving agencies only on the presentation to the Treasurer of the numbers of tickets received.





(Alan Staniforth, Scarborough Forty Club & Discussion Group: A Brief History: the ‘40’ Club, founded in 1899, Alan Staniforth, 2005)


[image: image]


1940: On this day, the Scarborough and District Licensed Victuallers Association organised a ball at the town’s Grand Hotel, with proceeds being passed to the Mayoresses’ Comfort Fund. Music was provided by Jack Elvidge and his band. (Richard James Percy, Scarborough’s War Years, 1939-45, Sutton Publishing Ltd, 1992)
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2009: Scarborough Rugby Union Football Club played their last match at the Newby ground before moving to new premises at Silver Royd on Scalby Road. The club was formed in 1926 at a meeting held at the Pavilion Hotel, and the team’s first match was at Whitby. In the early years, home games were played at pitches adjacent to Seamer Road and a Supporters’ Club, formed in the 1928/29 season, has played a major role in guiding progress which has culminated in the new era at Silver Royd, which boasts one of the best amateur rugby venues in the country. (www.scarboroughrugby.co.uk)


JANUARY 25TH


1603: An entry in the diary of Lady Margaret Hoby states: ‘This day it was told Mr Hoby that a ship was wricked up at Burniston upon his land and thus at all times God bestowed benefittes upon us. God made us very thankful … ’ Lady Margaret had married her third husband, Sir Thomas Hoby, in 1596, and she is said to be the earliest known example of a woman of high rank whose personal diary has survived. She died at the age of sixty-two in September 1633 and was buried at Hackness. This statement in her diary has been interpreted by some observers as indicating the involvement of members of the local gentry in nefarious activities. During the Tudor period, Filey was reported to have three pirates, Bridlington to have seven while Scarborough totalled no less than twenty-two. At that time, the term ‘pirate’ was applied to unpleasant activities ranging from harrying and capturing shipping to wool smuggling, and in some remote communities it is quite likely that most people were involved to a greater or lesser extent. (Graham Smith, Smuggling in Yorkshire 1700-1850, Countryside Books, 1994)


JANUARY 26TH


1919: Bill Nicholson (christened William Edward) was born in Scarborough on this day. Educated at Scarborough Boys’ High School, he then worked in a laundry while beginning a career in football, playing for local teams such as the Young Liberals. His talents as an inside forward led to a trial at Tottenham Hotspur Football Club in 1936 and he made his league debut during 1938. The war years saw him enlist with the Durham Light Infantry where he became a physical training instructor. During 1948, Nicholson resumed his career with Spurs and some three years later he won his only England cap, against Portugal, before retiring in 1954 to take up a coaching career. After becoming manager in 1958 he built teams around household names such as Danny Blanchflower, Dave Mackay and Jimmy Greaves and then again around Alan Mullery, Pat Jennings, Martin Peters and Martin Chivers. Playing with great style and panache, Spurs won eight English and European cup competitions before Nicholson unexpectedly resigned in 1974. He was awarded an OBE a year later and returned to Tottenham as a consultant in 1976, before becoming club president in 1991. He died on October 23rd 2004. (www.telegraph.co.uk)


JANUARY 27TH


1936: On this day, newspaper articles reported on dense fog along the Yorkshire coast, which caused ‘several mishaps to shipping’. During this episode three vessels ran ashore – there was a collision in the vicinity of Whitby, and the Scarborough lifeboat was launched to go the aid of the Heatherfield, which had crashed into rocks. Ninety helpers were called out to haul the lifeboat over a long stretch of sand and it was quickly floated from its carriage. It had only travelled two lengths under engine power when it ran into a sandbank off the mouth of Scarborough harbour. All the crew, apart from the coxswain and engineer, leapt into the waist-deep water while the ninety helpers waded across the water to pull the ropes. After considerable difficulty they managed to re-float the lifeboat, and as it edged northwards the coxswain, John Owston, reported that crew members could not see each other in the fog. An hour and a half later they had almost reached the stranded vessel but could not approach close enough until daylight. After a wait of around two hours, Morse signals from shore-based rescuers indicated that crew members had been removed by life-saving apparatus from the Heatherfield and the lifeboat returned to Scarborough. (Scarborough Evening News)


JANUARY 28TH


2006: Today, Britain’s largest illuminated ‘Star Disk’, measuring 26 metres in diameter, was officially switched on at 7 p.m. by the Deputy Mayor of Scarborough, Councillor Jim Preston. Constructed on the site of the South Bay Pool, the disk included (in the form of fibre optic terminals) the forty-two brightest circumpolar stars (meaning stars which never disappear below the horizon) as seen in the heavens from Scarborough. It also defines the positions of the sunrise points over the North Sea for various dates in the year. Create, an arts and cultural agency specialising in setting up temporary works of art and related events, initiated plans for this phase of development around the South Bay Pool. Further input was provided by the Scarborough Urban Renaissance of Public Space Group in partnership with Scarborough Borough Council. The event was accompanied by a large public star party, where the major attraction for members of the public was the opportunity to observe Saturn through telescopes and pick out its distinctive ring system and major satellites. By coincidence, or design, the planet was nearest to earth on the day before the event. (forum.popastro.com)


JANUARY 29TH


1900: A meeting of the Forty Club featured a special talk on the ‘Genesis of Crime’ by Mr Bowerman, which was illustrated with limelight slides. The audience included about thirty guests in addition to members and the presentation was followed by a musical programme. This is typical of the Forty Club’s early meetings, which featured discussion and debate and were complemented by musical programmes, dinners and social evenings, as well as an annual Smoking Concert (first held on March 12th 1900). (Alan Staniforth, Scarborough Forty Club & Discussion Group: A Brief History: the ‘40’ Club, founded in 1899, Alan Staniforth, 2005)
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1940: Scarborough’s first air-raid warning sounded after enemy aircraft had been spotted in airspace over Cayton Bay, but on this day attacks were restricted to shipping. SS Stanburn was sunk to the south east of Flamborough Head, after a Stuka dive bomber suddenly appeared from cloud cover to drop three bombs on the ship. Captain Lewis and twenty-five of her crew died in the attack, leaving only three survivors. During the following months the town suffered tip-and-run raids that caused wide-scale damage to property and important targets such as the harbour, the Admiralty wireless station and army barracks, which were singled out in later attacks. (David Fowler, God Bless the Prince of Wales: Volume 1, The War Years, Farthings Design & Publishing, 2008)


JANUARY 30TH


1987: Today, the Windmill on Mill Street in Scarborough was listed with Grade II status. Windmills have stood on this site for over 400 years, but the present structure dates from 1784 when it was completed in red handmade bricks by Thomas Robinson. In 1880, a fierce gale blew down most of the mill’s sails, but corn grinding continued until 1927 using power from a gas turbine engine. During the following decades, it fell into disrepair and narrowly escaped demolition in the 1980s before restoration work got underway. The sails have been replaced, and an exterior balcony has been added as part of the mill’s most recent era as holiday accommodation. Internal machinery has been replaced by modern furnishings and fittings, but this fine structure still represents an outstanding example of a tower mill. The earliest type of windmill in England was the post mill, where machinery and sails on the central post were rotated to bring the sails into the wind, but by the fifteenth century the tower mill, with grinding machinery mounted in a fixed stone or brick tower, was being introduced throughout the country. The third type of windmill in England was the smock mill, allegedly so-called because of its similarity in appearance to a man wearing a smock. (www.britishbuildings.co.uk)


JANUARY 31ST


1939: On this day, Dr Robert Cuff, surgeon and local medical officer, died in a Scarborough nursing home. Born at Binderton, Sussex, in 1858, he studied at Guy’s Hospital, London and was appointed to the Scarborough Sanitary Authority in 1885. Some three years later, Cuff was elected a member of the medical staff of Scarborough Hospital and Dispensary and soon afterwards he was Medical Officer of Health for Scarborough. He was also Medical Officer to the Royal Northern Sea-bathing Infirmary for forty years and chairman of the local branch of the British Medical Association from 1903-5. During his later life, Cuff served as a borough magistrate, a magistrate for the North Riding of Yorkshire and a county councillor. After establishing the Scarborough Convalescent Home for Children, in association with Lady Isa Sitwell, he continued as Honorary Consulting Medical Officer and Senior Trustee. A bout of illness in 1928 saw him head to the south of England, but he returned to Scarborough some two years before his death at the end of January 1939. (Anne and Paul Bayliss, Medical Profession in Scarborough 1700 to 1899: A Biographical Dictionary, A.M. Bayliss, 2005)
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1941: Sixty enrolments were made today, for the Air Training Corps under a new national scheme, which provided pre-entry training for boys intending to join the RAF or Fleet Air Arm. (Richard James Percy, Scarborough’s War Years, 1939-45, Sutton Publishing Ltd, 1992)
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